M NUTES
SENATE FI NANCE COW TTEE
February 26, 2003
8.04 AM

TAPES

SFC-03 # 10, Side A
SFC 03 # 10, Side B

CALL TO ORDER

Co-Chair Lyda Green convened the neeting at approxi mately 8:04 AM
PRESENT

Senat or Lyda Green, Co-Chair
Senator Gary W/ ken, Co-Chair
Senat or Lyman Hof f man

Senat or Robi n Tayl or

Senator Ben Stevens

Al so Attendi ng: SENATCOR BETTYE DAVI S; SENATOR JOHNNY ELLI'S; SENATOR
CON BUNDE; SENATOR GEORG ANNA LI NCOLN, SENATOR KIM ELTON
REPRESENTATI VE BILL STOLTZE;, REPRESENTATIVE NANCY DAHLSTROM
REPRESENTATI VE CARL GATTO Key Coalition Menbers: MAUREEN MCCLONE
from Anchorage; WYNN LEVI TT from Homer; CARY WEBB, from Anchor age;
VI RON WEBB, from Anchorage; JAME POLTY from Anchorage; KATHY
MARLEY from Fai rbanks; M LLIE RYAN, Executive Director, Governor's
Council on Disabilities and Special Education from Anchorage;
SHI RLEY EVANS from Seward; CARLA NORMAN from Seward; CAT THOVPSON
from Sewar d; DEBRA BABCOCK from Fai rbanks; JASON SCOTT from Eagl e
Ri ver

Attending via Teleconference: There were no teleconference
partici pants.

SUMVARY | NFORMVATI ON

The Senate Finance Commttee, joined by other nenbers of the Senate
and the House of Representatives, heard a presentation fromthe Key
Coal i ti on Canpai gn.

Key XVI Canpai gn 2003 Presentation

SFC- 03 (1) 02/ 26/ 03



MAUREEN MCCLONE, Coordi nator, Key Coalition Canpaign, thanked the
Committee for the opportunity to make today’s presentation. She
noted that approximately 300 individuals, who include famly,
friends, caregivers, and nmedical professionals, were at the State
Capitol today to present a unified voice in support of services for
Al askans wth disabilities. She stated that some of these
participants are attending even though "they are risking their
personal privacy.”

Ms MC one announced that the Key Canpaign is presenting to
Legi slators three recommendati ons. The first reconmendation, she
identified, is that the Key Coalition be allowed to partner with
the State for "a one hold harmess year” to address inproved
services and cost effectiveness neasures for the Medicaid program
The second request, she continued, is for the Legislature to
support the Mental Health Trust Authority's $625, 000 general fund
request for the Medicaid Wiiver Budget Review Unit (BRU). She
rem nded that, since 1994, these Honme and Community Based Wi vers
have provided the matching funds necessary to attract additional
federal nonies and have offset, by nore than 50-percent, the cost
of services for nore than 1,000 Al askans wth devel opnental
disabilities (DD). She applauded the 1997 closure of the State's
Har borview Institution, and, she noted, that since that tine,
statistics support the Coalition's claim that community-based
services and hone care are nore cost effective than institutional
care, and in addition, allow people to have a better quality of
life. She specified that, on an annual basis, the waiver costs the
State $68, 724, as conpared to an annual cost of $117,00 for nursing
home care and $183,000 for institutional care. She stated that, in
addition to these savings, funding the waiver programwoul d assi st
the State in reducing the waiver programwait |ist which nunbers
approxi mately 1, 500.

Ms. McClone stated that the third request is that the Legislature
support the Mental Health Trust Authority's request for $625, 000
for the Infant Learning Program (IFP), as she noted, it is
"recogni zed" that early intervention inproves a child s health and
wel | being and assists in reducing long-term costs of care. She
attested that these funds would assist in reducing the ILP wait
list that currently nunbers approximately 176, and thereby,
positively inpact individual's eligibility for pre-school prograns.
She stated that this funding would al so assist in the recruitnent
and retention of qualified programstaff.

WYNN LEVI TT, resident of Honer, infornmed the Commttee that due to

being granted a Medicaid waiver two years ago, her 25 year-old
di sabl ed daughter who has multiple devel opnental delays and a

SFC- 03 (2) 02/ 26/ 03



conpl ex seizure disorder, is able to live at hone and be invol ved
in the coomunity. She shared that the waiver allows her daughter to
benefit from 60 hours a week of attendant personal care, which, she
shared, also provides the famly reprieve from the stress of
constant care giving. She noted that her daughter's health has
i nproved, her seizures are less frequent, and that the famly's
situation has inproved. She asked the Legislators to support the
continued funding of these waivers and to support other DD
progranms, such as the Base G ant program In addition, she urged
that this funding be provided in order to all ow people on the wait
list to receive assistance, as she recalled how lonely and un-
supported life was prior to receiving this waiver. She also
attested that training and recruiting of qualified staff is an
i nportant part of the process.

CARY VEBB, Resident of Anchorage, introduced his w fe VIRON WEBB
and their foster child JAME POLTY. He communi cated how Jam e has
positively affected his famly's |life. He also noted that in years
prior, he had been a student in one of Senator Bundy's classes at
the University, and because of Senator Bunde's teaching, he |earned
t hat peopl e should use their voice to speak to people in authority,
such as the Legislators, as their voice could make a difference.

VI RON WEBB shared that nine-year old Jame Polty, their foster
child, joined the famly four years ago, and she noted that, while
caring for a child with disabilities is a challenge, the famly,
whi ch consists of three of their own children, |oves Jam e. She
stated that Jam e has bl ossoned fromthe therapy and care that the
famly is able to receive through the Medicaid wai ver program and
that her progress has inproved to a |level that "anazes" even her
doctors. She stated that Jame and other DD individuals and
famlies all benefit from being on the waiver program and she
declared that, "the sky is the [imt" as far as the advances that
m ght be possible from the care these individuals receive. She
stated that the waiver program nust continue and that providing
care to the 1,300 people on the waiting list should be viewed with
Jam e's acconplishnments in mnd.

KATHY MARLEY, resident of Fairbanks, stated that she is a nother of
a 23-year old special needs daughter, Lisa. She shared details of
her daughter's nedical condition, and how Lisa reaches out to
unbuckl e or "free" other people who are in wheel chairs. She stated
that she loves Lisa for many reasons, one of which is for her
"uni que perspective of the world around her." Continuing, M.
Marl ey reveal ed that her daughter is still on the Medicaid waiver
wait-list and, as such, she, the nother, nust provide constant
care, and, as a result, has had to resign from her teaching
position. She stated that the situation has taken its toll,

SFC- 03 (3) 02/ 26/ 03



financially and heal th-wi se. She urged the Legislators to fund the
Medi caid waiver and other DD grant funding in order to allow
individuals and famlies to receive assistance and to help avoid "a
nore serious fate.”

Co-Chair WIlken noted that the DD wait list is conprised of
approximately fourteen different categories of service, and he
asked the testifier which wait list category her daughter is in.

Ms. Marley responded with uncertainty as to her daughter's specific
DD cat egory.

Co-Chair WIken voiced that this informati on woul d be appreci ated
as he noted that further understandi ng of how people are placed on
the wait list would be hel pful.

M LLI E RYAN, Executive Drector, Governor's Council on Disabilities
and Speci al Education, from Anchorage, explained that the Counci
"tracks trends and issues that inpact people with devel opnental
disabilities and their famlies.” She stated that "the recruitnent
and retention of direct service staff is a major problemnot only
for the DD program"™ but also for mental health and substance abuse
prograns. She stated that the caliber of staff affects the quality
of the services, results in health and safety issues, and affects
the continuity of the program She stated that a survey of current
and prior workers revealed that staffers | eave the profession due
to | ow wages, |ow social status, and the |ack of value that the
general population places on the jobs these workers provide. In
addition, she stated that the situation is acerbated by a | ack of
coaches and nentors. She stated that to address some of these
i ssues, a media canpaign is being conducted and that a "whole life"
and | eader seminars would be conducted to boost these providers'
know edge and sel f-esteem She voiced support for HB 10 and SB 28,
as these pieces of legislation would assist in providing better
heal t h coverage for these health care providers.

SHI RLEY EVANS, resident of Seward, shared that her 16-year old
daughter has multiple disabilities and requires "help with each and
every activity." She shared that her daughter, Lela, has required
nunerous brain, spinal and other surgeries that the famly could
not have afforded wi thout the help of Mdicaid. She stated that,
whi | e her daughter would require lifelong care, the Medicaid waiver
has enabled Lela to devel op self-care skills such as communi cati on
skills and "hand over hand assistance"” in setting the table and
preparing lunch and snacks, and it has allowed her to remain living
with her famly. She urged the Commttee to continue support of the
Medi caid wai ver as she stated that were her daughter
institutionalized, the cost of care would be $300, 000 per year as

SFC- 03 (4) 02/ 26/ 03



opposed to the cost of the $65,000 waiver which allows her to
remain in her honme. She stated that the waiver has provided Lela
with "opportunities to reach her potential and contribute,” and she
asserted that, "it is also the nbst hunane, cost effective and
sensi bl e approach.” She distributed a copy of her presentation
[copy on file] to the Menbers.

CAT THOWPSQN, Caregiver and Resident of Seward, acconpani ed by her
35-year old enpl oyer CARLA NORMAN, spoke on behal f of M. Norman

who is disabled as the result of an autonpbile accident she was
involved in at the age of 21. Ms. Thonpson conmunicated to the
Legislators that Ms. Norman had to live for ten years in a nursing
home before she was granted a waiver that has allowed her to live
in her honme with the assistance of a caregiver. She stated that M.
Nor man has | earned sign | anguage, participates in physical therapy,
and is now able to walk a few steps and to use her left hand to
eat. In addition, she stated that Ms. Nornman has started a busi ness
i n which she makes dog biscuits that are sold via | ocal businesses.
She explained that the profits fromthe business would be used to
purchase a service dog. She declared that Ms. Norman is truly an
amazi ng wonman. She stated that the saddest part of the situation is
that, were Ms. Norman to | oose her Medicaid funding, the services
she requires to live in her own hone would be [ost, and "she woul d
sl i de backwards” and "woul d be forced to becone invalid." She urged
the Legislators to renmenber Ms. Norman when making their funding
deci si ons.

DEBRA BABCOCK, Resident of Fairbanks, spoke, as a parent and a
professional, regarding the Infant Learning Program (ILP). She
shared that in March of 1993, she becane a foster parent to three
brot hers whom she subsequently adopted. She stated that the boys
were waitlisted for the ILP, and, when finally accepted, the ol dest
brother was only able to receive a few nonths of assistance, and
therefore, mssed the "wi ndow of opportunity” that the two younger
brothers were able to receive. Furthernore, she stated that, as the
boys, who suffer from Fetal Alcohol Syndrone (FAS), have grown,
their qualifying for other prograns has varied. She stated that she
becane an Early Interventionist for the ILP, and she stressed that
early intervention is extrenely inportant to both the child and the
famly, and that the collaborative care provided by the
interventionists teamis inportant. She attested that qualified IFP
staff recruitnent and retention is difficult, and she noted that,
as a single parent, she has had to take a job with the school
district because it provides better pay and benefits. She pl eaded
with the Legislators to support the $625, 000 request for the Infant
Learni ng Program

JASON SCOTIT, Resident of Eagle River, Menber of Focus Incorporated

SFC- 03 (5) 02/ 26/ 03



Service Agency, showed the Legislators a picture of his son,
Andrew, who, he shared, began to denonstrate synptons of disability
at the age of seven nonths. He noted that Andrew began to receive
| LP assistance at that tinme; however, he noted that the full extent
of Andrew s disabilities becane apparent |later on. He stated that
Andrew was waitlisted for Medicaid wai ver services for seven years,
and has just begun receiving the waiver fromthe State. He shared
the difficulty that the famly experienced during the waitlist
tinme, and he detailed the services that Andrew is now being
provided. He stated that at the age of eleven, Andrew is now
experiencing a different range of enotional issues that has "spun
our famly into a fair crisis situation,” and he noted that the
famly is realizing "that Andrew s needs are certainly going to be
lifelong, they won’t go away, and that they would be ever-
changi ng." He concluded that w thout the support of Medicaid and
ot her services, Andrew would not be able to |ive at honme. He urged
the Conmmttee to support the three recommendati ons presented by the
Key Canpaign, as he stated, these support systens "must stay in
pl ace," as other options are unavail abl e.

Ms. McClone stated that the testinony that has been presented is
indicative of the situations faced by people with DD and their
famlies. She stated that approximately 1,300 people are waitlisted
for the Medicaid Waiver program and that 200 children are on the
ILP waitlist. She stated that this intervention nmakes a trenendous
difference to the individuals and fam |ies being served.

SFC 03 # 10, Side B 08:51 AM

Ms. McC one urged the Legislators to support the Key Coalitions
three requests for the Medicaid waiver program the ILP;, and for
one year of cooperative efforts by the Key Coalition and the State
to address the issues. She thanked the Legislators for the
opportunity to present these recomendati ons.

Co-Chair Geen reiterated Co-Chair WIlken's request that any
specific information the Coalition could supply to Legislators
would be appreciated, as it wuld further assist them in
under st andi ng the needs of the program

Co-Chair WI ken asked whet her the Key Canpai gn coul d provide a copy
of the prograns’ wait list, sorted both by city and by need.

Ms. McCl one responded that the State is endeavoring to revise the

wait list format so that the needs are nore easily identified. She
stated that currently, the lists could be sorted by age and by

SFC- 03 (6) 02/ 26/ 03



regi on; however, she voiced uncertainty as to whether the sort
could be by city.

Co-Chair WI ken asked whether a wait list sort, by city, could be
managed.

Ms. MC one responded that, in addition to this being a human
resource issue, it mght be a database issue as people nobve and
have changes in health status.

Co-Chair WIken commented that a wait list, sorted by city and
need, would be beneficial, as it would provide Legislators with
meani ngful information. He asserted that the current 26-page wait
list consists "of nunbers that don't tell you anything." He asked
the Coalition to assist the State with "breaking" the wait |ist
i nt o neani ngful informtion.

Ms. McCl one agreed.

SENATOR GEORG ANNA LI NCOLN stated that the Key Canpai gn has been
presenting to the Legislature for sixteen years. She voiced
appreciation for their sharing of the positive acconplishnments that
have occurred, however, she stated that it saddens her to realize
that the Key Coalition nust continue to conme before the Legislature
and "beg for the services for your |oved ones and for Al aska's
future.” She voiced appreciation for their efforts, and asked that
they do not to halt their efforts to raise the awareness of these
i ssues, across the State.

Senat or Bunde noted that the Coalition's desire to work with the
Legislature to solve these issues is heartening. However, he noted
that the State's budget deficit is substantial, and that noney is
scarce. Therefore, he asked that Coalition nenbers communicate to
their communities that, such things as resource devel opnent and
ot her revenues sources would be required in order to provide for
the needs of the State.

#

ADJ QURNIVENT

Co-Chair Lyda G een adjourned the neeting at 08:58 AM

SFC- 03 (7) 02/ 26/ 03



